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JOHN G. BURGEE, ESQ. (State Bar No. 132129)
BURGEE & ABRAMOFF P.C.

20501 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 262

Woodland Hills, California 91364

(818) 264-7575

Attorneys for Plaintiff,

JOHN TROXTEL dba
REDMONKEY PICTURES

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

JOHN TROXTEL, an individual doing ) CASE NO.
business as REDMONKEY PICTURES, )
) COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND
Plaintiff, ) EQUITABLE RELIEF:
)
V. ) 1. BREACH OF CONTRACT
) 2. COMMON COUNTS
CHRIS BROWN, an individual, CBE ) 3. [RESERVED]
TOURING, LLC, a Delaware limited ) 4. UNJUST ENRICHMENT
liability company, and DOES 1 through 10, ) 5. UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES
inclusive, ) 6. DECLARATORY RELIEF
) 7. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
Defendants. )
) DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
)

Plaintiff JOHN TROXTEL alleges:
SUMMARY OF CLAIMS

L. It is no surprise that pop-star CHRIS BROWN retained JOHN TROXTEL to design
the set for his current tour. Mr. Troxtel has years of experience designing concert sets for top artists
the likes of which include Emenem, Dr. Dre, Snoop Dogg, 50 Cent, Puff Daddy and Michael
Jackson. Mr. Brown certainly aspires to be in league with these performers. Mr. Troxtel’s job was
to transform what otherwise would be just a guy singing and rapping on stage into a multi-media
spectacle worthy of a superstar. Mr. Troxtel did so through dozens of video elements, an animated

cartoon and pervasive computer graphics synced to Mr. Brown’s performance.




A =2 e I L - Y ¥, T - S S B 6 S

NN NN NN NN e ek e e et e hed R e e
00 ~J A WL H W N = O Y N DW= O

2. Despite Mr. Troxtel’s top-quality work to make Mr. Brown’s concerts a success — the
audiences rave about the animation and effects — CHRIS BROWN’s touring company CBE
TOURING, LLC has decided to stiff Plaintiff for hundreds of thousands of dollars of work and
expenses. As a result, Defendants have failed to acquire the right to use the animation, videos and
computer graphics which are the work-product of Plaintiff ‘s company RedMonkey Pictures.
Plaintiff brings this action to prevent the unauthorized use of his work-product and otherwise obtain
redress from Defendants.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This action, as hereinafier more fully appears, is subject to the jurisdiction of this
Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1332(a) based upon the amount in controversy being in excess of
$75,000 and the action involving citizens of differing States.

4. This action is properly venued in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1391(a)(2) in that a
substantial part of the events and the injury to Plaintiff occurred in this district.

THE PARTIES

5. Plaintiff JOHN TROXTEL is, and at all times material hereto was, an individual
residing in the County of Los Angeles, State of California. Plaintiff is therefore a citizen of the State
of California. Plaintiff does business using the fictitious business name RedMonkey Pictures
(“RedMonkey”).

6. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that Defendant CHRIS
BROWN is, and was at all times material hereto, an individual. Mr. Brown is a popular recording
artist currently on a concert tour in the United States. Among other places, his concerts are presently
scheduled to occur in the County of Los Angeles, State of California. Plaintiff is informed and
believes and thereon alleges that Mr. Brown is a citizen of Georgia.

7. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that Defendant CBE
TOURING, LLC ("CBE") is, and was at all times material hereto, a limited liability company
formed under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business in the State of
Georgia. Plaintiff is therefore informed and believes and thereon alleges that CBE is a citizen of

Delaware and Georgia. Plaintiff is further informed and believes and thereon alleges that Mr. Brown
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is an officer, director, member and/or manager of CBE.

8. The names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate or otherwise, of
defendants named herein as DOES 1 through 10, inclusive, are unknown to Plaintiff, who therefore
sue such Defendants by such fictitious names. Plaintiff will amend this Complaint when the true
names and capacities of such Defendants have been ascertained. Plaintiff further alleges that each
such Defendant is responsible in some manner for the actions alleged herein and further for the
damages suffered by Plaintiff.

9, At all times herein relevant and in doing the acts alleged herein, each Defendant was

the agent, servant, partner, employer and/or employee of each and every other Defendant and the acts

| of each Defendant were within the course and scope of said agency, service, partnership and/or

employment.

10. At all times herein relevant and in doing the acts alleged herein, the entity Defendants,
and each of them, acted through their officers, managers, employees and agents, and the conduct of
each entity Defendant named herein and its officers, managers, employees and agents was within the
purpose and scope of such employment and agency. The acts and conduct alleged herein were
known to, and authorized or ratified by, the officers, managers, directors and managing agents of the
entity Defendants, and each of them.

11. Plaintiff is informed and believes and hereon alleges that each of the Defendants is
profiting from the exploitation of RedMonkey’s work-product.

BACKGROUND OF THE CONTROVERSY

12. In September 2007, CBE retained RedMonkey to design a set for CHRIS BROWN’s
concert tour. As tour manager and authorized agent of CBE, Maceo Price made an oral agreement
with Plaintiff for the work. Plaintiff also met with Mr. Brown who knew and approved the hiring
RedMonkey. RedMonkey sent CBE invoices for the set design work some of which CBE paid,

13.  During the course of RedMonkey’s work for CBE, extra work was required and
requested and extra expenses incurred. The extra work included the creation of animation to be
shown for Mr. Brown’s entry at the beginning of his set as well as various electronically recorded

materials such as computer generated effects and videotaped performances, for use throughout Mr.
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Brown’s show. Mr. Price orally authorized the extra work and expenses. Plaintiff is informed and
believes and thereon alleges that Mr. Brown was aware that RedMonkey was performing additional
work. |

14.  CBE and Mr. Brown approved the work performed and the materials created by
RedMonkey, and incorporated RedMonkey’s work-product and materials into Mr. Brown’s concert
show. Nevertheless, when RedMonkey requested payment for the additional work and expenses, and
licensing fees for the use of the recorded materials it created, CBE failed and refused to pay.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
[Breach of Oral Contract Against CBE]

15.  Plaintiff incorporates here by reference all of the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1
through 14, inclusive, of this Complaint.

16.  The parties had an oral agreement for RedMonkey’s services including the extra work
and expenses incurred.

17.  CBE breached the parties’ agreement by failing to pay RedMonkey for is work
(including license fees on the materials it created) and reimburse its expenses.

18.  RedMonkey performed all obligations required of Plaintiff by the parties’ agreement
except as have been excused, waived or rendered impdssible.

19.  Asadirect and proximate result of CBE’s breach of contract, Plaintiff has sustained
damages in excess of $500,000 subject to proof at the time of trial.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Common Counts Against CBE and BROWN)

20.  Plaintiff incorporates here by reference all of the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1
through 14, inclusive, of this Complaint.

21.  RedMonkey performed services and advanced money at the insistence and request of
Defendants with the understanding that Defendants would pay RedMonkey for its services and
reimburse its expenses. Additionally, Defendants have been using animation and electronically
recorded materials created and owned by RedMonkey. It was understood by the parties that

Defendants would pay for the use of RedMonkey’s property.
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22.  Defendants have benefitted from RedMonkey’s services, the use of its property and
the expenses it incurred, the aggregate value of which Plaintiff believes to be in excess of $500,000.
Although Plaintiff has demanded payment, Defendants have refused to pay. Plaintiff is therefore
entitled to recover $500,000 from Defendants.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

[Reserved|]

23.  [Reserved.]

24.  [Reserved.]

25.  [Reserved.]

26. [Reserved.]

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unjust Enrichment Against All Defendants)

27.  Plaintiff incorporates here by reference all of the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1
through 14, inclusive, of this Complaint.

28. CBE is using RedMonkey’s work-product without permission and without
compensating Plaintiff, in connection with Mr. Brown’s concert tour. Plaintiff is informed and
believes and thereon alleges that the other Defendants are aware that CBE does not have the right to
use RedMonkey’s work-product. Nonetheless, CBE and the other Defendants allow RedMonkey’s
work-product to be used at Mr. Brown’s concert performances so that they may profit from such
concerts. Defendants are therefore being unjustly enriched by the unauthorized and unlawful use of
RedMonkey’s work-product.

29.  Plaintiff seeks an order from this Court requiring Defendants to account for and
disgorge the profits that they are obtaining through the unlawful exploitation of RedMonkey’s work-
product. Plaintiff believes that such profits are in excess of $1,000,000 subject to proof at trial.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unfair Business Practices Against All Defendants)

30.  Plaintiff incorporates here by reference all of the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1

through 14, inclusive, and 28, of this Complaint.
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31.  Plaintiff is in the business of creating animation, computer graphics, and special
effects, among other things. By engaging in a business practice of allowing RedMonkey’s work-
product to be pirated and exploited without Plaintiff’s permission, Defendants are unfairly
diminishing the value of RedMonkey’s work-product should RedMonkey seek to sell similar work-
product to other customers.

32.  Defendants' business practices as alleged herein above are unlawful and in violation

of California Business and Professions Code Section 17200 et seq. Consequently, Plaintiff seeks an

order pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 17204, requiring Defendants to cease use

of Plaintiff’s-work-product and to disgorge the monies wrongfully obtained through their unfair

business practices.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Declaratory Relief Against All Defendants)
33.  Plaintiff incorporates here by reference all of the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1
through 32, inclusive, of this Complaint.
34, An actual controversy exists among the parties conceming their respective rights with
respect to the right to exploit RedMonkey’s work-product. Plaintiff contends, and Defendants

dispute that Plaintiff is the owner of its Work-product which includes animation set to the “Mission

Impossible Theme”, taped performances of Chris Brown, computer generated effects and an effect
known as “Peppers ghost”, and that Plaintiff is entitled to a license fee from Defendants for the
exhibition of same. Consequently, a judicial determination of the rights of the parties hereto with
respect to the exploitation of RedMonkey’s work-product is necessary and appropriate.
SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Injunctive Relief Against All Defendants)

35.  Plaintiff incorporates here by reference all of the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1

'J through 33, inclusive, of this Complaint.

36. Plaintiff is informed and believe and thereon allege that Defendants, and each of
them, unless restrained, will continue the unlawful and unauthorized use of RedMonkey’s work-

product, causing irreparable injury for which damages would not completely compensate Plaintiff.
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Plaintiff therefore seeks a preliminary and final injunction preventing Defendants from exhibiting,
using, selling, licensing, and otherwise exploiting RedMonkey’s wotk-product during the pendency

of this action and permanently to prevent further irreparable injury.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as
follows:
ON THE FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

1. For damages in excess of $500,000, subject to proof at trial;
ON THE FIRST AND SECOND CAUSES OF ACTION

2. For the value of the service rendered, expenses incurred and use of RedMonkey’s

" work-product in excess of $500,000, subject to proof at trial;
ON THE THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

3. [Reserved.]

4, [Reserved.]

5. [Reserved.]
ON THE FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

6. For the accounting and disgorgement of the unjust profits made by Defendants from
the unauthorized exploitation of RedMonkey’s work-product which is believed to be in excess of
$1,000,000, subject to proof at trial;
ON THE FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

7. For Defendants’ revenues from the exploitation of RedMonkey’s work-product which
is believed to be in excess of $1,000,000, subject to proof at trial;

8. For an order prohibiting Defendants from exhibiting, selling, licensing, or otherwise
exploiting RedMonkey’s work-product;
{| ON THE SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

9. For a declaration of the parties' respective rights as to RedMonkey’s work-product
and RedMonkey’s right to a licensing fee;
"
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ON THE SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

10.  For a preliminary and permanent injunction prohibiting Defendants from exhibiting,
selling, licensing, or otherwise exploiting RedMonkey’s work-product;
ON ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

11.  For pre-judgment intereét;

12, For costs of suit herein incurred; and

13.  For any further relief the court may deem proper.

DATED: December 24, 2007

JQHN TROXTEL dba REDMONKEY PICTURES




DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
TO THE CLERK OF THE ABOVE-ENTITLED COURT AND TO EACH PARTY AND
THEIR COUNSEL OF RECORD HEREIN:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Plaintiff JOHN TROXTEL dba REDMONKEY

PICTURES request a jury trial of each issue presented in the above-captioned action.
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DATED: December 24, 2007




